
WTRY Broadcast Schedule Regular Meetings, Wednesday, 6:15 p.m. and 11:00 p.m. Study Meetings, Wednesday, 3:15 p.m. 

 PLANNING COMMISSION 

 MEETING AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 

 
 

Michael W. Hutson, Chair, and Mark Maxwell, Vice Chair 
Donald Edmunds, Philip Sanzica, Robert Schultz, Thomas Strat 

John J. Tagle, Lon M. Ullmann and Mark J. Vleck 

   

October 12, 2010 7:30 P.M. Council Chamber 
   

 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES September 28, 2010 Special/Study Meeting 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUESTS 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE APPROVAL AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
(File Number SU 383) – Proposed Clawson-Troy Elks Lodge, Northeast Corner of Elliott and 
Minnesota (2549 Elliott), Section 36, Currently Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 

 
6. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE APPROVAL AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 

(File Number SU 315-B) – Proposed Pro Car Wash West, West side of Rochester and South 
of Wattles (3785 Rochester), Section 22, Currently Zoned H-S (Highway Service) District 

 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
7. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
8. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
NOTICE: People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at 

clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 

500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48084 
(248) 524-3364 
www.troymi.gov 

planning@troymi.gov 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us


PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 28, 2010 
  

 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Hutson at 7:30 p.m. on September 28, 2010 in the Council Board Room of the Troy 
City Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Philip Sanzica 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mark Maxwell 
Robert M. Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
Mark J. Vleck 
 

Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 

 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
Resolution # PC-2010-09-066 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 

Yes:  All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2010-09-067 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the September 14, 2010 Regular meeting 
as prepared. 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 

MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 28, 2010 
  

 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Edmunds reported on the September 21, 2010 Board of Zoning Appeals meeting. 
 

 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant reported on the September 15, 2010 meeting of the Downtown 
Development Authority. 
 

 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant reminded the Planning Commission of the joint meeting with City Council 
on October 4, 2010. 
 
Mr. Savidant reported that the Troy/Birmingham Intermodal Transit Center received 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval by City Council on September 20, 2010.  A design 
workshop will be held prior to Final Site Plan Approval, as per the approving resolution. 
 
 

STUDY ITEM 
 
8. COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE REWRITE (ZOTA 236) – Discussion 

with Representatives from Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
Mr. Branigan reviewed a draft of Article 20 Form Based Codes.  Additionally, he 
summarized the proposed zoning districts.   
 
There was general discussion of the item. 
 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
9. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 

There was no one present who wished to speak. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 28, 2010 
  

 
 

 - 3 - 
 

 
10. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 

There were no comments. 
 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:10 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Michael W. Hutson, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2010 PC Minutes\Draft\09-28-10 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 

 



  PC 2010.10.12 
  Agenda Item # 5 

 

 
 
 
 
DATE: October 7, 2010 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE APPROVAL AND PRELIMINARY SITE 

PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 383) – Proposed Clawson-Troy Elks Lodge, 
Northeast Corner of Elliott and Minnesota (2549 Elliott), Section 36, Currently 
Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 

 
 
The applicant proposes to utilize an existing vacant light industrial building as the Clawson-
Troy Elks Club.  The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
summarizes the project.   
 
Please be prepared to discuss the application at the October 12, 2010 Planning Commission 
Regular meeting. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Report prepared by CWA. 

 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ SU 383 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU 383  Clawson-Troy Elks Lodge 2169  Sec 36\SU-383 PC Report 10 12 2010.docx 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE APPROVAL AND PRELIMINARY SITE 
PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 383) – Proposed Clawson-Troy Elks Lodge, 
Northeast Corner of Elliott and Minnesota (2549 Elliott), Section 36, Currently 
Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 

 
Resolution # PC-2010-10- 
Moved by:  
Seconded by:  
 

RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval 
for the Clawson-Troy Elks Lodge, located on the Northeast Corner of Elliott 
and Minnesota (2549 Elliott), Section 36, within the M-1 zoning district, be 
granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. At least twenty-two (22) off-street parking spaces on the abutting parcel to 

the east (2591 Elliott) shall be made available for use by the Clawson-Troy 
Elks Lodge, if needed.   The shared parking agreement shall be provided 
in a form acceptable to the City Attorney and executed and recorded by 
the parties sharing the parking. 

 
Yes:  
Absent:  
 
MOTION CARRIED / FAILED 

 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU 383  Clawson-Troy Elks Lodge 2169  Sec 36\Proposed Resolution 10 12 2010.doc 



Clawson-Troy Elks

10/6/2010

Legend

1: 1,038

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

860173 173Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Hydrography Poly

Hydrography Arc

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



Clawson-Troy Elks

10/6/2010

Legend

1: 1,038

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

860173 173Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Zoning

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(B-1) Local Business District

(B-2) Community Business District

(B-3) General Business District

(R-C) Research Center District

(C-F) Community Facilities District

(C-J) Consent Judgment

(E-P) Environmental Protection District

(R-EC) Residential Elder Care

(P-1) Vehicular Parking District

(H-S) Highway Service District

(M-1) Light Industrial District

(O-1) Office Building District

(O-M) Office Mid-Rise District

(OSC) Office Service Commercial District

(CR-1) One Family Residential Cluster District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(R-1T) One Family Attached Residential District

(R-2) Two Family Residential District

(R-M) Multiple Family Residential Medium Density

(RM-1) Multiple Family Residential District (Low Rise)

(RM-2) Multiple Family Residential District (Mid Rise)

(RM-3) Multiple Family Residential District (High Rise)

Hydrography Poly

Hydrography Arc

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



 
 
 

 Date:  October 7, 2010 
 
 

Special Use Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
Applicant: Clawson Troy Elks  
 
Project Name: Clawson Troy Elks Lodge 
 
Plan Date: September 10, 2010 
 
Location: 2549 Elliott Drive 
 
Zoning: M-1, Light Industrial District  
 
Action Requested: Preliminary Site Plan Approval, Special Use Approval 
 
Required Information: Deficiencies noted 
 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
We are in receipt of a preliminary site plan and special use submittal for the reuse of an existing 
vacant industrial building for a new location for the Clawson Troy Elks.  The project proposes 
several small physical improvements and will also include the renovation of the building, and the 
addition of two new vestibules on the east facade.   
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the northeast corner of the intersection of Minnesota Avenue and 
Elliott Avenue. 
 
Size of Subject Property: 
The subject site is approximately 1.8 acres in area. 



Elks Lodge - October 7, 2010 

2 

Proposed Uses of Subject Parcel: 
The applicant proposes to use the existing building for an Elks Lodge, which will house fraternal 
organization meetings, indoor recreation, a members’ lounge, offices, and a rental hall. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The subject property is currently a vacant building.   
 
Current Zoning: 
The property is currently zoned M-1, Light Industrial District.  
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels and Current Land Use:  
North: M-1, Light Industrial District; industrial 
West: M-1, Light Industrial District; industrial 
South: M-1, Light Industrial District; industrial 
East: M-1, Light Industrial District; industrial 
 

BUILDING LOCATION AND SITE ARRANGEMENT 
 

The existing building faces Elliott Drive, with parking to the east and a loading area along the 
north façade.  Access is provided via an existing front yard driveway on Eliott, and a driveway 
behind the building connecting to Minnesota Drive.  The site configuration is typical, with lawn 
and some landscaping along the front yards on both drives, and a building situated central to the 
main parcel.  There is also a second parcel being created from a portion of the parcel to the east, 
which has a significant amount of additional parking, but no building.  This second parcel has 
two access drives to Eliott Drive. 
 
The applicant intends to use the existing driveways and parking surface, with modified striping 
and barrier-free access.  Please see our comments in the parking and site access and circulation 
sections below. 
 
Items to be Addressed: None   
 

AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS 
 
The area, width, height, and setback requirements for the M-1 District are established by Section 
30.20.09.  We have reviewed the existing dimensions of the site and can confirm that all area, 
width, height, and setback requirements of the M-1 District are being met. 



Elks Lodge - October 7, 2010 

3 

Required and Provided Dimensions: 
 

 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 

PARKING 
 
Proposed Parking: 
The site plan indicates a total of 104 parking spaces which includes 4 barrier free parking spaces. 
 
Parking Calculations: 
The parking calculations provided by the applicant are as follows. 
 

 

 Required: Provided: 

Setbacks   
Front 

(south) 50 feet 50 feet 

Front 
(west) 50 feet 50 feet 

Side 
(east) 10 feet 59.96 feet 

Rear 
(north) 20 feet Approximately 74 feet 

Building Height 3 stories, 40 feet Single story, 22 feet, 7 
inches  

Required Provided 
(Lodge Hall portion) One (1) for each three (3) persons 

allowed within the maximum occupancy load as 
established by local, county or state fire, building or 
health codes. In those areas used for dining room or 

banquet room purposes, the parking requirements for such 
use areas shall apply. 

112 occupants = 37 spaces 

104 spaces 

(Banquet Hall portion)  One (1) for each two (2) persons 
within the seating capacity of the establishment, plus one 
(1) employee parking space for each ten (10) seats within 
the seating capacity or one (1) for each twenty (20) square 

feet of banquet area, whichever is greater. 
1,702 square feet/20 square feet = 85 spaces 

(Offices)  One (1) for each 200 square feet of usable floor 
area. 

1,080 square feet X 80% usable = 864 square feet 
864 square feet/200 = 4 parking spaces 

Total required parking = 126 spaces 



Elks Lodge - October 7, 2010 

4 

The parking calculations provided on sheet P-3 were used to make these parking determinations.  
The floor plan, provided by another designer, contradicts these square footage and occupancy 
requirements slightly.  A final, accurate, consistent set of calculations will be required for final 
site plan approval. 
 
The site pan is deficient by 22 parking spaces.  However, the industrial use to the east has a 
significant parking area, and will likely have different peak parking demand hours from the 
proposed use.  The applicant has indicated on sheet P-3 that an agreement has been reached with 
the adjacent owner to allow overflow parking to meet demand during peak times, in the rare 
occasion when the entire facility would be used to full capacity.  An easement will be necessary 
to guarantee this shared parking arrangement.  While we support this approach, the applicant 
must provide legal documentation that such an agreement for an easement is in place, in a form 
acceptable to the City Attorney, prior to final site plan approval. 
 
Items to be Addressed: 1.) Provide final, accurate, consistent occupancy and square footage 
calculations. 2.) Secure a shared parking easement and provide documentation to the City 
Attorney.   
 
SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION 
 
Proposed Circulation: 
The site will be accessed from an existing front yard driveway that connects to Eliott Drive and 
two additional driveways from the parking lot to the east to Eliott Drive.  The site will also 
benefit from an existing rear yard driveway that provides access to Minnesota Drive. 
 
Sidewalks:  
39.70.03 specifically exempts M-1 District properties from the requirement for sidewalks.  This 
site does not provide sidewalks along either frontage.  The parking area is directly adjacent the 
building and is continuous, eliminating the need for sidewalks between the parking and building.  
The applicant is also adding a barrier-free ramp along the east side of the building to allow for 
ADA accessibility.  The site is adequately served for access and circulation. 
 
Items to be Addressed: None.    
,  
NATURAL RESOURCES 
 
The site is previously developed and contains typical natural features.  The proposed plan would 
not impact any protected natural features, and will actually improve the natural condition of the 
site by adding a refreshed landscaped area west and south of the building, as well as improved 
maintenance. 
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 



Elks Lodge - October 7, 2010 

5 

 
LANDSCAPING 
 
A landscape plan has been submitted as part of this application.  In the M-1 District, street trees 
are required at a rate of one three for every 30 linear feet of frontage along both streets.  The 
subject site has 560 feet of frontage requiring 19 street trees.  The site has 4 existing trees, and 
the applicant has shown in the landscape plan that an additional 15 trees will be added to the site.  
The site also maintains the required 10-foot greenbelt along both frontages, and has 36% open 
space, mostly in the two front yards, exceeding ordinance requirements. 
 
Items to be Addressed: None.  
 
LIGHTING 
 
The applicant has not provided a photometric plan for this project.  Full lighting details will be 
provided for final site plan approval.  No additional lighting information has been provided with 
regard to any proposed or existing lighting, with the exception of the façade elevations, which 
show existing wall pack fixtures. 
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
SPECIAL USE REVIEW 
 
For any special use, according to Section 03.31.04, the Planning Commission shall review the 
request, supplementary materials either in support or opposition thereto, as well as the Planning 
Department’s report, at a public hearing established for that purpose, and shall either grant or 
deny the request, table action on the request, or grant the request subject to specific conditions. 
 
Required Information 
In the M-1 District, fraternal organizations are not specifically identified a use permitted by right, 
subject to conditions, or as a special use.  However, the Zoning Administrator has determined 
that the use is similar to other uses permitted by special use approval in the M-1.  Section 
28.30.11 states permits, as a special use, the following in the M-1 District: 
 
Other uses of a similar character to those permitted above, and which will not be injurious or 
have an adverse effect on adjacent areas, and may therefore be permitted subject to such 
conditions, restrictions and safeguards as may be deemed necessary in the interest of public 
health, safety and welfare. 
 
Other similar uses permitted specifically in the M-1 District include restaurants and indoor 
commercial recreation.  As such, a special use permit must be issued to allow the project to move 
forward, in accordance with Section 03.31.00. Section 03.33.00 establishes the information 
required for a special use application.  All required information has been provided. 



Elks Lodge - October 7, 2010 

6 

Standards of Approval 
Section 03.31.05 states that before approving any requests for Special Use Approval, the 
Planning Commission, or the City Council, where indicated, shall find that: 
 

1. The land use or activity being proposed shall be of such location, size and character as to 
be compatible with the orderly development or use of adjacent land and/or Districts. 

2. The land use or activity under consideration is within the capacity limitations of the 
existing or proposed public services and facilities which serve its location.  

 
We believe the land use as proposed by the site plan is of such location and character as to be 
compatible with the orderly development or use of adjacent land and/or Districts.  Also, the 
project will not exceed capacity limitations of public services and facilities.  The site has 
adequate parking and access, its hours will often differ from the main industrial uses in the area, 
and no residential uses are located close enough to warrant consideration for potential nuisances 
with regard to noise or traffic for existing neighborhoods. 
 
Items to be addressed: None. 
 
SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
Section 3.43.01 establishes the requirements for preliminary site plan approval.  Minimum 
submittal standards have been met. 

 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
We support the project as presented in that it meets the minimum requirement for preliminary 
site plan approval and satisfies the conditions of special use approval.  We recommend the 
Planning Commission grant preliminary site plan and special use approval, conditional upon the 
applicant providing legal documentation that such an easement for shared parking is in place, in a 
form acceptable to the City Attorney and that accurate, consistent occupancy and square footage 
calculations be provided to confirm parking requirements. 
 

 
 
 

















  PC 2010.10.12 
  Agenda Item # 6 
 

 
 
 
 
DATE: October 7, 2010 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE APPROVAL AND PRELIMINARY SITE 

PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 315-B) – Proposed Pro Car Wash West, West 
side of Rochester and South of Wattles (3785 Rochester), Section 22, Currently 
Zoned H-S (Highway Service) District 

 
The applicant proposes to renovate the existing automatic car wash building, including an 
addition to the west side of the building.  Other site elements will be modified, although the 
existing pump islands and canopy will remain.  The City recently acquired right-of-way from 
the owner for the ongoing Rochester Road construction project.  
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. summarizes the project.   
 
Please be prepared to discuss the application at the October 12, 2010 Planning Commission 
Regular meeting. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Report prepared by CWA. 

 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ SU 315-B 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU 315-B Pro Car Wash West  Sec 22\SU-315-B PC Report 10 12 2010.docx 



PRO CAR WASH WEST, 3785 Rochester

9/15/2010

Legend

1: 900

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

750150 150Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Hydrography Poly

Hydrography Arc

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



PRO CAR WASH WEST, 3785 Rochester

9/15/2010

Legend

1: 900

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

750150 150Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Zoning

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(B-1) Local Business District

(B-2) Community Business District

(B-3) General Business District

(R-C) Research Center District

(C-F) Community Facilities District

(C-J) Consent Judgment

(E-P) Environmental Protection District

(R-EC) Residential Elder Care

(P-1) Vehicular Parking District

(H-S) Highway Service District

(M-1) Light Industrial District

(O-1) Office Building District

(O-M) Office Mid-Rise District

(OSC) Office Service Commercial District

(CR-1) One Family Residential Cluster District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(R-1T) One Family Attached Residential District

(R-2) Two Family Residential District

(R-M) Multiple Family Residential Medium Density

(RM-1) Multiple Family Residential District (Low Rise)

(RM-2) Multiple Family Residential District (Mid Rise)

(RM-3) Multiple Family Residential District (High Rise)

Hydrography Poly

Hydrography Arc

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



 
 
 

 Date:  October 6, 2010 
 
 

Special Land Use Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
Applicant: Robert Waldron on behalf of Martha Waldron 
 
Project Name: Pro Car Wash West 
 
Plan Date: September 14, 2010 
 
Location: 3785 Rochester Road  
 
Zoning: H-S, Highway Service 
 
Action Requested: Preliminary Site Plan Approval 
 
Required Information: Deficiencies noted 
 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
We are in receipt of a special land use and preliminary site plan submittal for a building addition 
to an existing car wash facility.  In addition, the east elevation will be modified and several site 
improvements are proposed. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located near the corner of Troywood Drive and Rochester Road (3785 Rochester 
Road) in section 22. 
 
Size of Subject Property: 
The parcel is 0.67 acres in size. 



Pro Car Wash West – October 6, 2010 
 

2 

Proposed Uses of Subject Parcel: 
The applicant proposes to expand the existing building at the west end by fifteen (15) feet, 
adding 523 square feet of floor area.  This addition accommodates an extended pre-wash tunnel 
for the existing car wash facility.  Additionally, the applicant is proposing to remove and replace 
the east exterior wall of the car wash facility decreasing this portion of the building by 155 s.f.  
The new building configuration will encompass 6,872 s.f. of total space consisting of a car wash, 
store, and mechanical / storage / office facilities.  A new car wash automated pay station is also 
proposed within the proposed landscaped area north of the barrier-free parking space at the west 
end of the site. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The property is currently used as an automatic car wash where engine fuels are sold as a 
significant part of the operation and features a store, cashier window, three vacuum stations, and 
four multiple product dispensing gasoline pump units. 
 
Current Zoning: 
The property is currently zoned H-S, Highway Service.  Section 23.30.03 permits auto washes 
where engine fuels are sold as a significant part of the operation  in the H-S District as a use 
permitted subject to special land use approval and to the provisions of Chapter 71 of the City 
Code. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: B-3 General Business District. 
South: B-3 General Business District. 
East: B-3 General Business District. 
West: R-1C One-Family Residential. 
 
Future Land Use Plan Designation: 
The property is located in the Rochester Road Future Land Use Plan designation.   
 

AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS 
 
Required and Provided Dimensions: 
Section 30.20.07 requires the following setbacks and height limits: 



Pro Car Wash West – October 6, 2010 
 

3 

 
The proposed building addition encroaches upon the required rear yard setback by 6.6 feet.  This 
will have to be addressed through altering the site plan or obtaining a variance from the Zoning 
Board of Appeals. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  Address rear yard setback deficiency. 
 
PARKING, LOADING 
 
Proposed Parking: 
The site plan indicates that 59 spaces are proposed, including one handicapped space, the 8 pump 
island spaces, 39 stacking spaces for the car wash, and employee and customer spaces for the 
store.   
 

 Required: Provided: 
Setbacks from  

FUTURE R.O.W. 
  

Front 
(east) 

40 feet (car wash) 
25 feet (canopy edge) 

35 feet (canopy support) 
30 feet (pump island) 

40.36 feet (car wash) 
95 feet (canopy edge) 

95 feet (canopy support) 
94 feet (pump island) 

Side 
(south) 

0 feet (car wash) 
10 feet (canopy edge) 

20 feet (canopy support) 
20 feet (pump island) 

0 feet (car wash) 
35 feet (canopy edge) 

35 feet (canopy support) 
42 feet (pump island) 

Side  
(north) 

10 feet (car wash) 
10 feet (canopy edge) 

20 feet (canopy support) 
20 feet (pump island) 

57 feet (car wash) 
17 feet (canopy edge) 

17 feet (canopy support) 
22 feet (pump island) 

Rear 
(west) 

75 feet (car wash) 
75 feet (canopy edge) 

75 feet (canopy support) 
75 feet (pump island) 

68.4 feet (car wash) 
148 feet (canopy edge) 

148 feet (canopy support) 
147 feet (pump island) 

Building Height 
40 feet (car wash) 
40 feet (canopy) 

28.7 feet (car wash) 
Unknown (canopy) 



Pro Car Wash West – October 6, 2010 
 

4 

Parking Calculations: 
The parking calculations are as follows. 
 
 

 Required  

Pump Islands 1 per pump station = 8 
spaces  

Automobile Wash 

5 Stacked cars/20 feet of 
wash line 

= 197/20 * 5 = 
50 stacking spaces   

 

Employees 1/employee  
= 4 spaces  

Retail 
1/200 sf. Of gross floor area 

= 1635 /200 =  
8 spaces 

 

Total Required 20 spaces + 50 stacking 
spaces = 70 spaces  

Total Provided 

12 regular parking spaces, 8 
pump station spaces.  The 

applicant also claims that 47 
stacking spaces are 

provided; however we 
believe that several of these 
spaces are ineligible to be 

considered stacking spaces, 
and conflict with pump 

spaces that are not shown on 
the drawings. 

 

 
 
Parking Deficiency: 
 
The increased automatic car wash square footage results in an increase in required stacking 
spaces.  The site plan proposes some stacking spaces which clearly conflict with the fuel pump 
parking, however.  We calculate that the site plan only provides 33 spaces that can truly be 
considered stacking spaces for the car wash.  The Zoning Ordinance requires stacking parking 
calculations to be based upon feet of wash line.  Automobile wash stacking spaces must be 
provided at a rate of five spaces per 20 feet of wash line, or in this case, 50 spaces.  Therefore, 
the site is deficient 15 automobile wash stacking spaces.  However, 47 spaces are shown on the 
site plan, and were there to be no vehicles at the pump stations; it is conceivable that all 47 
spaces shown could be occupied.  Of course, access not only to the refueling stations, but also to 
the access and exit lanes would also be restricted if all 47 spaces were occupied.   
 
We believe it is highly unlikely that over 40 vehicles would occupy the site for refueling 
simultaneously, and if they did, no customers would enter the site for refueling only.  It is likely 
that customers who are entering the site would refuel and attain a car wash or patronize the store, 
which would also ease the burden on the stacking spaces by bringing the refueling spaces into 
play.  That said, we do believe that the stacking spaces shown meet minimum requirements. 



Pro Car Wash West – October 6, 2010 
 

5 

 
Two (2) parking spots are blocked by the car wash queue.  This may not be a problem which can 
be solved on this restricted site.  Also, this condition currently exists in many car wash facilities.  
The space near the car wash entrance, for instance, will likely be used by staff, and it is unlikely 
that such demand will exist in the site that the barrier-free space, which is located so as to 
provide access to the main building, will be blocked. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION 
 
Proposed Circulation: 
The site will be accessed from one existing curb cut on Rochester Road.  An existing access 
point is also provided via a cross-access agreement with the property to the north. 
 
Additional problems exist with the site access and circulation.  They are as follows: 
 

• The merging of the four lanes of car wash queued cars near the island on the east side of 
the property creates a conflict. 

• A by-pass lane is identified for vehicles fueling to exit the property without entering the 
car wash queue.  However, vehicles utilizing the southernmost fuel pumping stations 
nearest the building at busy times would be required to “cut” in line, and as such, could 
create conflicts.  

 
Items to be Addressed:  Address issues identified in bulleted list above. 
 
NATURAL RESOURCES 
 
The site is existing and devoid of natural features, with the exception of some existing 
landscaping and a few trees.  Please refer to our analysis of site landscaping later in this review. 
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
LANDSCAPING 
 
A landscape plan has been provided identifying how Ordinance requirements are being met.  The 
site does currently have required frontage trees, and the applicant has relocated several existing 
planters, reducing waste and the need for new plants.  The revised site plan preserves only one 
tree, which does not qualify as a frontage tree.  The required frontage trees must be provided, 
although we do recognize the limited area in which trees could be located near the right-of-way.  
This should be discussed with the Planning Commission. 
 
The applicant has not provided sufficient open space.  The landscape design and tree preservation 
standards specify that 10% of the site area be landscaped.  For this site, that would equate to 



Pro Car Wash West – October 6, 2010 
 

6 

2,918 square feet, but the plan only allocates 1,388 square feet.  Thus, the site plan is deficient by 
1,530 square feet of landscaped area.  
 
Items to be addressed: 1.) Provide frontage trees. 2.) Obtain a variance from the Zoning Board 
of Appeals for landscaping deficiencies. 
 
SPECIAL USE REVIEW 
 
For any special land use, according to Section 03.31.04, the Planning Commission shall review 
the request, supplementary materials either in support or opposition thereto, as well as the 
Planning Department’s report, at a Public Hearing established for that purpose, and shall either 
grant or deny the request, table action on the request, or grant the request subject to specific 
conditions. 
 
Required Information 
In the H-S District, an auto wash where engine fuels are sold as a significant part of the operation 
is a special land use, with the conditions that waiting and stacking spaces shall be provided in 
accordance with Section 40.21.44 and drives providing waiting or stacking spaces shall be set 
back at least twenty-five feet from any residential district as section 23.30.03 specifies.  As such, 
a special land use permit must be issued to allow the project to move forward, in accordance with 
Section 03.31.00.  Section 03.33.00 establishes the information required for a special land use 
application.  All required information has been provided. 
 
Standards of Approval 
Section 03.31.05 states that before approving any requests for Special Use Approval, the 
Planning Commission, or the City Council, where indicated, shall find that: 
 

1. The land use or activity being proposed shall be of such location, size and character as to 
be compatible with the orderly development or use of adjacent land and/or Districts. 

2. The land use or activity under consideration is within the capacity limitations of the 
existing or proposed public services and facilities which serve its location.  

 
We believe the use of this land use as proposed by the site plan (and as it exists today) is of such 
location and character as to be compatible with the orderly development or use of adjacent land 
and/or Districts.  This site plan represents an improvement to the site made necessary by the 
revisions to Rochester Road.   
 
The applicant will have to modify the proposed building addition or obtain a variance from the 
Zoning Board of Appeals in order to meet the required rear yard setback for a car wash facility in 
the H-S, Highway Service zoning district.  The applicant will also be required to obtain a 
variance for landscaping area.   
 
The site plan as designed largely mimics the existing uses that are present on the subject site, 
albeit in a slightly different configuration, with more floor area.  The site’s intensity is atypical 



Pro Car Wash West – October 6, 2010 
 

7 

for a property of this size, but the changes made in the site plan do improve the condition over 
the existing facility.  Therefore, we support special use approval. 
. 
Items to be addressed: Address site design issues. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
With additional commercial square footage and a larger car wash building, there is a slight 
intensification of use and therefore parking and stacking requirements.  Overall, the intensity of 
the site will be similar to what exists now, but may cause a few more vehicles moving throughout 
the site.  
 
We are confident that the proposed alterations to the existing business will be an improvement to 
the site, if the rear setback requirement can be rectified.  We recommend that Planning 
Commission postpone action on the application until such time as the applicant can obtain ZBA 
approval for the required variances, and to allow the applicant a chance to revise the site plan to 
address and other outstanding items noted herein.  
 
 

 
 
 
 










	1.  ROLL CALL
	2.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	3.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	September 28, 2010 Special/Study Meeting

	4.  PUBLIC COMMENTS
	5.  SPECIAL USE APPROVAL AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 383)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps
	Planning Consultant Report
	Site Plan

	6.  SPECIAL USE APPROVAL AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 315-B)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Maps
	Planning Consultant Report
	Site Plan

	7.  PUBLIC COMMENTS
	8.  PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS

